
 

 

Agenda - Equality, Local Government and 

Communities Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Video Conference via Zoom 

Meeting date: 18 March 2021 

Meeting time: 13.30

For further information contact: 

Naomi Stocks 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddCommunities@senedd.wales
------ 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

   

2 Paper(s) to note 

 (Page 1)  

2.1 Letter from the Llywydd to all Senedd Committee Chairs in relation to the 

Welsh Elections (Coronavirus) Bill 2021 – impact on Senedd Committees 

 (Pages 2 - 3)  

2.2 Letter from the Minister for Housing and Local Government in relation to the 

inquiry into fire safety in high rise blocks in Wales (Welsh Government white 

paper - Safer Buildings in Wales: A Consultation) 

 (Pages 4 - 25)  

2.3 Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's report on the 

impact of COVID-19 on the voluntary sector 

 (Pages 26 - 37)  

3 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) to resolve to exclude the 

public from the remainder of the meeting 

   

4 Consideration of the Committee's draft legacy report 

(13.30 - 14.00) (Pages 38 - 56)  

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



 

 

5 Consideration of the Committee's consultation response to the 

Welsh Government white paper - Safer Buildings in Wales: A 

Consultation 

(14.00 - 14.45) (Pages 57 - 71)  



Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee 

18 March 2021 - papers to note cover sheet 

Paper no. Issue From Action 

point 

ELGC(5)-07-21 

Paper 1 

Welsh Elections 

(Coronavirus) Bill 

2021 

Letter from the Llywydd to 

all Senedd Committee 

Chairs in relation to the 

Welsh Elections 

(Coronavirus) Bill 2021 – 

impact on Senedd 

Committees 

To note 

ELGC(5)-07-21 

Paper 2 

Inquiry into fire 

safety in high-rise 

buildings 

Letter from the Minister for 

Housing and Local 

Government in relation to 

the inquiry into fire safety 

in high rise blocks in Wales 

(Welsh Government white 

paper - Safer Buildings in 

Wales: A Consultation) 

 

To note 

ELGC(5)-07-21 

Paper 3 

Inquiry into the 

impact of COVID-19 

 

Response from the Welsh 

Government to the 

Committee's report on the 

impact of COVID-19 on the 

voluntary sector 

To note 

 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2



To: All Senedd Committee Chairs 

Via email 

15 March 2021 

Dear Chair, 

Welsh Elections (Coronavirus) Bill 2021 – impact on Senedd Committees 

Following the passing of the Welsh Elections (Coronavirus) Bill 2021, I am writing to draw to your 

attention the impact on committee business prior to the dissolution of the Senedd. 

The Bill shortens the dissolution period to begin one week before the day of the election, 

scheduled for 6 May 2021. Dissolution will commence on 29 April and Members will continue as 

Members of the Senedd until that date. 

The rationale for a shortened dissolution period (one week rather than four), as set out in the 

Explanatory Memorandum to the Bill, is:  

▪ To enable any new powers (provided for in the Bill) to postpone the election (which cannot

be exercised during a dissolution period) to be exercised up to one week before the election;

and

▪ To provide a mechanism to enable the current Senedd to respond, if required to do so, to the

unfolding public health issues in the period leading up to the election.

Business Committee has agreed that, as far as possible, during the election period there should be 

a level playing field for all candidates, to ensure a fair election and equality of opportunity for all. 

This principle has been reflected in decisions taken by the Senedd Commission in considering the 

availability of Senedd resources to Members and Senedd committees during the period. You will 

recall that this approach was also discussed and endorsed by the Chairs’ Forum at its meeting on 

11 February. 

In line with this principle, the Business Committee has agreed that: 

▪ The Senedd will be in recess from 7 April until 28 April, to be called the ‘pre-dissolution

period’. The pre-dissolution period will follow the Easter recess (29 March -6 April). This is

consistent with previous election years, where Easter recess has led directly into dissolution;

▪ In order to provide a ‘level playing field’ for all candidates as far as possible during the

election period, Senedd business during the pre-dissolution period will be limited to that

which is related to the specific purposes of the shortened dissolution as outlined in the

Explanatory Memorandum of the Bill;

Paper 1 

Pack Page 2

Agenda Item 2.1



 

▪ As such, Senedd Committees will cease all activity during the pre-dissolution period; and 

▪ However, given its role in scrutinising urgent regulations, the Legislation, Justice and 

Constitution Committee may meet if it needs to consider urgent regulations related to 

Coronavirus, of the type that would require a Senedd recall, or regulations related to a 

postponement of the 2021 Senedd election, during the pre-dissolution period. To note, made 

affirmative coronavirus regulations would not routinely require a report from the Committee 

during this period. 

Whilst Chairs and members of committees will remain in place formally, Senedd committees are 

expected to cease all activity throughout the pre-dissolution period, including (but not limited to):  

▪ Publishing committee reports; 

▪ Making public statements, in any media, including social media; and 

▪ Any reference to the Member’s position on the Committee in any public forum.  

In the event that the Senedd election is postponed in accordance with section 6 of the Bill, I will 

convene the Business Committee to consider the Senedd business timetable, including the 

scheduling of committee business. 

Once the Bill has received Royal Assent, I will be writing to all Members about Senedd business 

during the pre-dissolution period.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

Elin Jones MS  

Llywydd and Chair of the Business Committee  

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pack Page 3



Eich cyf/Your ref  
Ein cyf/Our ref MA/JJ/1185/21 

John Griffiths MS, Chair 
Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee 
Welsh Parliament 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 
SeneddCommunities@senedd.wales  

16 March 2021 
Dear John, 

Thank you for your letter of 9 March regarding your recent evidence gathering sessions and 
consultation with residents on the Building Safety White Paper. 

I am grateful to the Committee for sharing some of the key issues leaseholders and 
residents have raised as part of this process. I have provided a response to each of the 
issues you raised in turn. 

Consultation and Engagement 

The proposals in our White Paper consultation have placed tenant voice at the heart of our 
vision for building safety reform. Tenants’ views and lived experience are critical to ensuring 
we reach the right solutions so I was disappointed to hear that some residents were 
unaware of the White Paper Consultation. My officials have taken part in a number of 
engagement events specifically targeted at residents and leaseholders. This includes 
webinars and information sessions with TPAS Cymru, which were attended and distributed 
amongst members as a tenant representative organisation, and briefing sessions with social 
landlords to allow them to engage with their tenants and leaseholders.  

My officials have engaged with leaseholders in the private sector, providing briefing 
sessions with resident representative bodies and campaign groups. For example, we held a 
briefing session on the day that the consultation was launched which included a number of 
representatives from ‘high profile’ buildings as well as the Leaseholder Action Group. We 
have emailed all managing agents of high rise residential buildings to highlight the 
consultation to encourage them to bring the consultation to the attention of residents. We 
have also met with representatives from individual buildings to discuss the White Paper, as 
well as other issues. We continue to arrange resident briefing sessions.  

We have developed materials based on the White Paper that are specifically aimed at 
residents to help them identify and understand the key proposals that are relevant to them 
and how they can share their views and participate in the consultation. In addition, we have 

Papur 2 
Paper 2

Pack Page 4

Agenda Item 2.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales
mailto:SeneddCommunities@senedd.wales


targeted materials for building owners and managing agents. We will be hosting a virtual 
event later this month to support them in sharing these materials with their residents. In this 
way we hope to provide those responsible for building management and tenant 
engagement with the right information and communicative aids to create opportunities to 
encourage discussions with their residents on our proposals and maximise resident 
engagement.  
 
I attach copies of these materials for the Committee’s reference and encourage you to 
share them with any of the individuals you have engaged with on this issue as part of your 
focus groups. 
 
At the time of the launch there was a significant interest from the press and media on this 
issue, and we continue to promote the consultation though social media and other 
communications channels.  
 
My officials will continue to consider ways to engage with residents and will continue to work 
with management companies, management agents and landlords to promote the 
consultation. 
 
Existing buildings 
 
I am acutely aware of the significant challenges presented by buildings with existing safety 
defects. I have personally met with many residents and leaseholders of affected buildings 
who have shared with me first-hand the considerable toll this situation is taking on them. I 
am in no doubt about our need to respond quickly. However, working at pace cannot be at 
the expense of reaching the right solution for this complex issue. Prioritising shortcuts over 
safety is a large part of the problem we have with the existing system. 
 
I have been very clear that building safety is a priority for this government.  
 
Following the Grenfell fire we took prompt and decisive action to identify buildings with ACM 
cladding and provided £3m capital funding to remove and replace the non-compliant ACM 
cladding identified on three social sector high-rise residential buildings in Wales. In the 
private sector we engaged closely with building owners and cladding has now either been 
removed or plans are in place with the aim of taking forward work this year. This was all 
achieved at no additional cost to leaseholders. Beyond ACM cladding, we have made 
£10.5m available this year to support high rise buildings in the social sector with building 
defects which will see 12 buildings accessing support.  We have also committed £32m of 
capital funding to support remediation for both the private and social sector in 2021/22.  
 
We will establish a funding offer for Wales that goes further than that proposed in England. 
As the Committee recognises, we want to ensure a remediation fund provides a holistic 
approach to building remediation, which goes beyond just cladding, to ensure these 
buildings are truly safe for residents. The fund we intend to offer will look beyond cladding to 
include compartmentation, fire breaks and – importantly – fire alert, evacuation and 
suppression systems.  
 
I will provide further details on the funding offer and how to access it as soon as I am able. 
 
Access to Information 
 
I am aware that it can be challenging to obtain information about buildings and as the 
Committee acknowledge this is a key area our proposed reforms seek to address with the 
creation of a Golden Thread of Information which ensures that accurate and reliable 
information about buildings is collated and maintained throughout its lifecycle. 

Pack Page 5



 
Access to Advice 
 
As the Committee recognises, building safety is a very complex area that can require 
specialist knowledge and expertise to navigate. As a Government, we fund the LEASE 
service who are able to provide advice on a case by case basis to support individuals to 
navigate this complexity.  
We actively promote accessing LEASE in our correspondence. We will amend our 
documentation to include their information to further promote awareness. 
 
We recognise this is a complex area and this is why our reforms will ensure that dutyholders 
have the right level of competence and expertise to properly manage their buildings and 
provide the right information and support to residents. 
 
Identifying defects 
 
Building owners undertake the EWS process. The building owner or managing agent is 
responsible for confirming what materials are on their building and whether an assessment 
is required. If the building owner does not acknowledge their legal responsibility and refuses 
to undertake the necessary assessment, the local authority can provide further advice on 
what steps might be taken.  
 
It is important to ensure an appropriately qualified member of a relevant professional body, 
with sufficient expertise to identify relevant materials within external wall cladding 
undertakes the review process. The RICS website provides information on professionals 
that can undertake these assessments (https://www.rics.org/uk/news-insight/latest-
news/fire-safety/new-industry-wide-process-agreed-for-valuation-of-high-rise-buildings/).  
 
We have also received a high number of queries and concerns from residents and 
leaseholders regarding the EWS1 process. The process has also been subject to recent 
change following Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) publishing updated 
guidance which aims to encourage a more proportionate approach to assessing buildings 
and to ensure that any additional investigations are focused on the most at risk buildings 
(the updated guidance is available here). 
 
We continue to signpost to useful guidance and FAQs on the RICS website to ensure 
individuals have access to accurate information on developments and any actions they may 
need to take in relation to their building. 
 
I hope this information provides clarity on the steps we are taking in this important area and 
is useful to you and Committee members. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  

Pack Page 6

https://www.rics.org/uk/news-insight/latest-news/fire-safety/new-industry-wide-process-agreed-for-valuation-of-high-rise-buildings/
https://www.rics.org/uk/news-insight/latest-news/fire-safety/new-industry-wide-process-agreed-for-valuation-of-high-rise-buildings/
https://www.rics.org/globalassets/rics-website/media/upholding-professional-standards/sector-standards/valuation/valuation-of-properties-in-multi-storey-multi-occupancy-residential-buildings-with-cladding.pdf


 

1 
 

Safer Buildings in Wales: consultation guidance for residents 

Our proposals to change building safety legislation and how you can 

get involved. 

 

About the White Paper 

The Safer Buildings in Wales’ White Paper sets out our proposals for changes to the 

way we design, build, manage and live in multi-occupied buildings in Wales.  

The tragedy at Grenfell Tower made it clear that we need to take important steps to 

improve building safety so that residents can be confident their homes are safe and well 

managed. 

A White Paper is a policy document produced by the Welsh Government that sets out 

our proposals for future legislation. It provides an opportunity for consultation and 

discussion with those interested in, or affected by, the proposed changes.  

 

The main changes we are proposing that will affect residents 

We want to make changes that mean residents can have more of a say in the matters 

that affect their homes and how they are managed. These include: 

 Creating new roles for those responsible for safety of the building so it is clear 

who is accountable and what you can expect from them 

 A duty on those who own or manage your building to promote building safety for 

the benefit of all residents 

 Sharing essential safety information with you such as what fire safety measures 

are in your building (e.g. fire doors, sprinklers etc) and advice on what to do in the 

event of a fire 

 Information on how you can contact those who manage your building to raise a 

concern or make a complaint 

 Information on steps you can take to promote safety in your building 

 

How the proposals in the White Paper may apply to your building 

Many of the proposals in the White Paper apply to all multi-occupied residential buildings 

in Wales, whether they are purpose-built or conversions. However, we are proposing to 

have two categories of buildings, with greater requirements on Category 1 buildings than 

Category 2 buildings. 

We propose Category 1 buildings are those buildings with six storeys or that are 18m or 

more in height.   

Category 2 buildings will be residential properties with two or more dwellings that are no 

more than 18m in height. 

Pack Page 7

https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales


 

2 
 

 

How the proposals will apply to existing buildings and new ones built after the 

new Building Safety Regime is introduced 

The majority of the proposals that will change the way buildings are designed and built 

will apply to new buildings or existing buildings that go through the building regulations 

process. However, we are also proposing to make lots of changes to the way occupied 

buildings are managed. These changes will apply to new and existing buildings.   

 

Responsibility for building safety 

We are proposing to introduce new roles to make it clear who is responsible for ensuring 

building safety under the new system. They will be called ‘dutyholders’. The dutyholder 

roles can be filled by either an individual or a legal entity such as an organisation. We 

are planning to create two new roles: 

1. The Accountable Person 

All multi-occupied buildings will have an Accountable Person. They will have legal 

responsibility for the safety of the whole building used for residential purposes. Their 

duties will include: 

 a duty to register all in-scope buildings under their ownership / control; 

 undertaking relevant fire and risk assessments; 

 probity and responsible working; 

 ensure that there are sufficient funds to address building safety issues 

 maintaining proper engagement with others; and  

 informing and supporting residents. 

 

2. The Building Safety Manager 

In Category 1 buildings only there will also be a Building Safety Manager, the 

Accountable Person can take this role on themselves if suitably qualified. The Building 

Safety Manager will support the Accountable Person to meet the new safety 

requirements and will have a more practical day to day responsibility for management of 

the building. This role could be taken on by an organisation like a managing agent or 

competent individual. Their duties will include: 

 creating, reviewing and maintaining building information (referred to as ‘the Golden 

Thread’); 

 planning and monitoring any maintenance or improvement works; 

 ensuring any third parties engaged to work on the building are suitably competent 

and qualified to do so; 

 cooperating with other dutyholders and enforcement bodies; and 

 engaging with, and informing, residents (including proactively promoting building 

safety). 

Pack Page 8



 

3 
 

The Accountable Person must be registered so that we know which buildings they are 

responsible for. If they have a Building Safety Manager they must also make sure they 

are registered too.   

 

Training or qualifications for the Accountable Person or Building Safety Manager 

We want to make sure that dutyholders have the required expertise to fulfil their roles. 

We are still developing the training and qualification requirements but we are proposing 

that the Accountable Person and Building Safety Manger obtain licenses so that they 

can demonstrate they have undertaken relevant training and understand their duties 

under the new system. The training and qualification requirements will be different 

depending on the category of building and the role they are taking on.  

We are also proposing to introduce a licensing system for those involved in the 

management of buildings, for example, managing agents and letting agents to ensure 

that the services people receive improves and is professionalised. 

 

How the proposals will make your building safer 

The proposals will make it clear who is responsible for maintaining safety in your 

building and how you can contact them if there are any problems, or escalate problems 

if they are not addressed. We also want to strengthen the way some current safety 

measures are provided. For example, we want to make important changes to the way 

fire risk assessments are carried out. We want them to be undertaken more frequently, 

by someone with the right qualifications and for those responsible to record the risks 

identified and steps taken to prevent or mitigate them so that this information can be 

made available to residents.  

 

What you can do to ensure your building is safe 

All residents have an important role to play in ensuring their buildings are as safe as 

possible. Unsafe behaviour can lead, or contribute, to a fire and other safety risks. As 

well as requiring dutyholders to ensure they reduce the safety risk, we are proposing 

additional responsibilities for residents to support the safety of the building for everyone. 

We are proposing a requirement on residents to cooperate with the Accountable Person 

and support them in fulfilling their duties in relation to building safety. For example, this 

could include: 

 allowing an approved person to access to your property for safety checks or work to 

be carried out; 

 providing reasonable information on works you have undertaken within your property; 

 seeking permission before you undertake work in your property that may 

compromise fire safety measures. 

Pack Page 9



 

4 
 

We are also proposing a requirement on residents (and others) not to knowingly breach 

the ‘compartmentation’ of their property. Compartmentation is the ability of a building to 

contain a fire where it starts for long enough to allow it to be extinguished. Examples of 

breaching the compartmentation include: 

 drilling through an external wall, any part of the internal structure separating one flat 

from another, a roof or ceiling void, or a common area (including front doors) without 

applying adequate and appropriate fire-stopping; 

 modifying fire doors or replacing the fire doors with doors which do not adequately 

resist the spread of fire; 

 tampering with or removing self-closing devices on fire doors; or 

 installing windows or window vents which do not adequately resist the spread of fire. 

 

Additional costs for residents as a result of the proposals in the White Paper 

There will be a cost to the new Building Safety Regime. However, we believe these 

costs are necessary and reasonable for things that will present a measurable increase in 

safety.  

We know that many residents are currently facing significant costs due to issues that 

have been identified with their buildings. We are currently working to develop a funding 

offer to address existing issues relating to cladding, building defects such as 

compartmentation and fire breaks, fire suppression systems (sprinklers) and fire 

evacuation sounders. We will provide further details on the funding available and how to 

access it as soon as we can.  

 

Funding for remediation work your building needs now 

Our proposals do not relate to any remediation work required on existing buildings. They 

are about major reforms to the way we design, build, manage and live in properties, to 

make buildings safer in the future and make sure that we avoid these types of problems 

occurring again.   

 

Further Information 

You can find more information on these proposals and have your say on the Safer 

Buildings in Wales consultation.  

Quick Read and Easy Read versions of the White Paper are also available. 

We have asked a number of questions about our proposals. If you would like to respond 

to the questions, complete the online form or download the consultation response form 

and send to us. 

Post: 

Pack Page 10

https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales
https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales
https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales
https://gov.wales/node/35809/respond-online
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-01/response-form_1.odt


 

5 
 

Building Safety Team  

Welsh Government  

Cathays Park Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

 

Email: BuildingSafety@gov.wales   

 

 

 

Pack Page 11

mailto:BuildingSafety@gov.wales


Safer Buildings in Wales: A Consultation

What do the proposals mean for residents?

P
ack P

age 12



What is a White Paper?
A White Paper is a policy document produced by the Welsh Government that sets out proposals for future 

legislation.  It provides an opportunity for discussion with those interested in, or affected by, the proposed changes. 

The ‘Safer Buildings in Wales’ White Paper sets out changes to the way multi-occupied buildings, such as flats, are 

designed, built and managed in Wales. The White Paper was published on 12 January 2021.

The proposals are intended to make buildings safer in future – both while they are being designed and built, and 

when people live in them.  

We want your views on our proposals, especially the ones that will directly affect residents, like yourselves, in the 

future.

These proposals do NOT relate to funding for any remediation work currently required for buildings with existing 

safety defects. Welsh Government are exploring options in relation to a funding offer and an announcement will be 

made in due course. The changes set out in the White Paper are about making changes to avoid these problems 

happening in again in the future.

P
ack P

age 13

https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales


Safer Buildings in Wales – A Consultation
Our proposals are for major reforms to the way we design, build, manage and live in properties, so that safety is 

observed at all stages of a building’s lifecycle. They focus on changes to the law across the lifecycle of buildings and 

culture change in the way buildings are designed, constructed and managed.  

Statistically, casualties as a result of fires are more likely to occur in Houses in Multiple Occupation and properties 

converted into flats. But Grenfell demonstrated that where a fire occurs in a high rise block of flats the results can be 

devastating. To address this, we propose that the new requirements will apply to more than just high rise buildings and 

include these other types of buildings were there may also be a risk to residents.

The buildings the changes will apply to are separated into two categories or groups:

• Category 1 - buildings that are 18m or more in height or more than 6 storeys and contain two or more dwellings. 

These buildings will be subject to more changes under the requirements of the Building Safety Regime. Changes with 

regards to design and construction will apply only to this category.

• Category 2 - residential properties with two or more dwellings that are no more than 18m in height. These buildings 

will be subject to numerous requirements of the Building Safety Regime. 

The proposed changes to the way buildings are designed and built will apply to new residential buildings or existing 

buildings that go through the building regulations process that are 18m or more. 

The proposed changes to the way occupied buildings are managed will apply to new and existing buildings in both 

Category 1 and Category 2.  

P
ack P

age 14



Proposed changes that will affect residents
We want to make changes that mean residents can have more of a say in the matters that affect their homes and 

how they are managed. These include:

• Creating new roles for those responsible for safety of the building so it is clear who is accountable and what 

you can expect from them

• A duty on those who own or manage your building to promote building safety for the benefit of all residents

• Sharing essential safety information with you such as what fire safety measures are in your building (e.g. fire 

doors, sprinklers etc) and advice on what to do in the event of a fire

• Information on how you can contact those who manage your building to raise a concern or make a complaint

• Information on steps you can take to promote safety in your building

These reforms will apply to existing buildings as well new buildings or buildings that are converted into residential 

properties.

P
ack P

age 15



Accountable Person 
We propose to create new roles for those responsible for safety of the building so it is clear who is accountable and 

what you can expect from them.

All multi-occupied buildings will have an Accountable Person. The Accountable Person is ultimately responsible for 

meeting the requirements of the new regime for their buildings/properties. They will have legal responsibility for 

the safety of the whole building used for residential purposes. Their duties could include:

• A duty to register all in-scope buildings under their ownership/control

• Undertaking relevant fire and risk assessments

• Probity and responsible working

• Ensuring there are sufficient funds to undertake duties and address building safety issues

• Maintaining proper engagement with others

• Informing and supporting residents

P
ack P

age 16



Building Safety Manager
For Category 1 (or high rise) buildings only, we are also proposing the creation of a Building Safety Manager role,

the Accountable Person can take this role on themselves if suitably qualified. 

The Building Safety Manager will support the Accountable Person to meet their responsibilities and will have a more 

practical role in day to day management. Whilst they may undertake day to day duties, the Accountable Person 

remains ultimately responsible for the safety of the building. 

This role could be taken on by an organisation like a managing agent or competent individual. Their duties will 

include:

• Creating, reviewing and maintaining building information (referred to as the ‘Golden Thread’)

• Planning and monitoring any maintenance or improvement works

• Ensuring any third parties engaged to work on the building are suitably competent and qualified 

• Cooperating with other dutyholders and enforcement bodies

• Engaging with and informing residents (including proactively promoting building safety)

P
ack P

age 17



Training or qualifications for the Accountable 
Person or Building Safety Manager

We want to make sure that dutyholders have the required expertise to fulfil their roles. 

We are proposing that the Accountable Person and Building Safety Manger obtain licenses so that they can 

demonstrate they have undertaken relevant training and understand their duties under the new system. 

The training and qualification requirements will be different depending on the category of building and the role 

they are taking on. 

We are also proposing to introduce a licensing system for those involved in the management of all buildings, for 

example, managing agents and letting agents would also have to be licensed to ensure that the services people 

receive improves and is professionalised.

P
ack P

age 18



Fire Risk Assessment
To make sure that buildings are properly managed in a way that ensures safety for all residents, there are new 

safety measures that Welsh Government want to introduce. 

One example of this is making changes to the way that fire risk assessments are conducted. This will apply to all 

buildings in scope of the new system.

There are currently no legal restrictions on who can conduct a fire risk assessment, or any requirement for those 

doing so to have any particular qualifications or experience. The proposals want to change this so that all fire risk 

assessments must be conducted by suitably qualified and experienced individuals. 

We are also proposing that fire risk assessments for all buildings within scope must be reviewed annually, and on 

every occasion that the premises are subject to major works or renovations or are otherwise subject to a 

significant change in circumstances. 

The fire risk assessment is critical to maintaining fire safety, and its findings need to be clearly recorded, 

understood, acted upon and updated. Therefore we are proposing that all fire risk assessments must be 

permanently recorded in documentary or electronic form. In addition to ensuring accurate records, this also 

means that this information can be shared with residents so that you can understand what steps are being taken 

how to keep your building/properties safe.

P
ack P

age 19



Promoting Building Safety 
All Accountable Persons should provide a minimum level of information to residents to promote safety in their 

buildings. This information is proposed to include: 

• Information on fire safety measures within the building.

• Advice on what to do in the event of a fire/if the fire alarm is activated. 

• General fire safety advice for residents.

• Information on the roles and responsibilities of the dutyholders 

• Information on the expectations on residents.

The level and detail of information provided to residents should reflect the complexity of the building.

The Accountable Person should be mindful of the needs of residents. Information should be provided in a way that 

is accessible. For example, taking language requirements into account.

The Accountable Person should be proactive, providing information to residents and updating them as and when 

appropriate.  This will help promote a culture of openness and transparency.

P
ack P

age 20



Complaints and Concerns
The Accountable Person will need to make sure they listen to, and address complaints and concerns raised by 

residents for all buildings under the new system. 

For Category 1 buildings there will be an additional requirement for the Accountable Person to set up a process for 

residents to raise building safety concerns, including a formal complaint. It would need to set out:

• The process for raising a concern and escalating it into a formal complaint.

• How complaints information will be recorded (including assessment of the concern and decision making around 
any action taken).

• How responses to concerns and complaints will be provided to the complainant and how information on 
concerns and complaints will be reported back to all residents and leaseholders.

• Information on how to escalate a concern to the regulator if it is not being addressed or taken seriously by those 
responsible. 

Whilst Category 2 buildings will not be required to have such a formal system in place, we would expect the 

Accountable Person to give due consideration to how residents might raise concerns with them.

P
ack P

age 21



Roles and Responsibilities for Residents
As residents you also have an important role to play in ensuring your homes are as safe as possible.  Unsafe 

behaviour can lead, or contribute, to a fire and other safety risks. 

As well as requiring dutyholders to ensure they reduce the safety risk, additional responsibilities for residents have 

been proposed to support the safety of the building for everyone.

We are proposing a requirement on residents to cooperate with the Accountable Person and support them in 

fulfilling their duties in relation to building safety. For example, this could include:

• allowing an approved person to access to your property for safety checks or work to be carried out;

• providing reasonable information on works you have undertaken within your property;

• seeking permission before you undertake work in your property that may compromise fire safety measures.

P
ack P

age 22



Compartmentation 
Compartmentation is the ability of the structure of a building to contain a fire where it originates for long enough 

to allow it to be extinguished. For example, if a fire starts in a flat, effective compartmentation means that it will be 

contained there and reduce the risk of it spreading to other flats or to common areas, such as corridors and 

stairwells.

Effective compartmentation is critical to fire safety. The proposed changes include a new general duty to maintain 

compartmentation in all buildings within scope of the new system. This means avoiding making changes that would 

damage compartmentation. 

This duty would apply to all buildings in scope and to everyone, including dutyholders, residents and contractors. 

Examples of breaching the compartmentation include:

• drilling through an external wall, any part of the internal structure separating one flat from another, a roof or 
ceiling void, or a common area (including front doors) without applying adequate and appropriate fire-stopping;

• modifying fire doors or replacing the fire doors with doors which do not adequately resist the spread of fire;

• tampering with or removing self-closing devices on fire doors; or

• installing windows or window vents which do not adequately resist the spread of fire.

P
ack P

age 23



Costs of Reform
Our proposals do not relate to any remediation work required on existing buildings. They are about major reforms 

to the way we design, build, manage and live in properties, to make buildings safer in the future and make sure that 

we avoid these types of problems occurring again.  

There will be a cost to the new Building Safety Regime. However, we believe these costs are necessary and 

reasonable for things that will present a measurable increase in safety. We set out information on these likely costs 

in the Economic Impact Assessment. 

We know that many residents are currently facing significant costs due to issues that have been identified with their 

buildings. We are currently working to develop a funding offer to address existing issues relating to cladding, 

building defects such as compartmentation and fire breaks, fire suppression systems (sprinklers) and fire evacuation 

sounders. We will provide further details on the funding available and how to access it as soon as we can. 

P
ack P

age 24

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-01/economic-impact-assessment_0.pdf


https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales

For further information:

Building Safety Team 

Welsh Government 

Cathays Park Cardiff

CF10 3NQ

email: BuildingSafety@gov.wales

https://llyw.cymru/adeiladau-mwy-diogel-yng-nghymru

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth:

Y Tîm Diogelwch Adeiladau 

Llywodraeth Cymru 

Parc Cathays Caerdydd

CF10 3NQ

ebost: BuildingSafety@gov.wales

This is an overview of the key proposals that affect residents of multi-occupied buildings. You can find more 

information on these proposals, and other areas that will also be subject to changes, via the links below on the Welsh 

Government website. 

Also available on the same webpage are Quick Read and Easy Read versions of the White Paper.

Welsh Government have asked a number of questions about their proposals and want to hear your views.  If you 

would like to respond to the questions, or share your thoughts on the changes, there is an online form available via 

the same link, or you can submit your responses via email or post at:

P
ack P

age 25

https://gov.wales/safer-buildings-wales
mailto:BuildingSafety@gov.wales
https:///
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fllyw.cymru%2Fadeiladau-mwy-diogel-yng-nghymru&data=04%7C01%7CClare.Severn%40gov.wales%7C3274cfb314a74cb7dc0d08d8b194064b%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637454596607415575%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=S1ufyzxrcolal1raCDVsoJM%2BJi%2BcoxBIjgD%2BC62Gfuo%3D&reserved=0
mailto:BuildingSafety@gov.wales
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-01/consultation-quick-read-version.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-01/consultation-easy-read.pdf


Written Response by the Welsh Government to the report of the Equality, 

Local Government and Communities Committee entitled Impact of Covid-19 on 

the voluntary sector.  

The response to the pandemic, and to the floods which affected many Welsh 

communities just before it, has highlighted how important the voluntary sector is to 

the health and resilience of our communities in Wales. The challenges which these 

events have thrown up have also highlighted the power and potential which lies in 

voluntary action and community spirit.    

I’m proud that we have a culture of volunteering in Wales and a long-standing 

infrastructure to support this, which includes the Volunteering Wales platform run 

through WCVA, in conjunction with County Voluntary Councils, who provide local 

hubs and work very closely with other public services, including local authorities and 

health boards. 

There are great challenges ahead, but also real opportunities to learn from and build 

on the experience of the last year, not least to harness the power of communities 

that has been demonstrated so powerfully. I am very clear that our forward planning 

must be done from a social justice perspective so that inequalities do not become 

ingrained, and those who have been disproportionately affected are not forgotten. 

This will determine the sort of society that emerges from the pandemic.  

I’m also keen that we find ways to take advantage of some of the positive shifts 

we’ve seen around volunteering and partnership working, and local action which 

could bring real benefits in the medium and long term.  A good example of this 

partnership working is the Coronavirus Recovery Grant for Volunteering.   

I would like to thank the members of the Equality, Local Government and 

Communities Committee for their report on the Impact of Covid-19 on the voluntary 

sector. I am particularly pleased to see that many of the Committee’s 

recommendations are in line with our current and future plans.  I have set out my 

response to the Report’s individual recommendations below. 

Paper 3

Pack Page 26

Agenda Item 2.3



The Committee recommendations are:  

Recommendation 1. That the Welsh Government recognises the role the current 

voluntary structure has played in improving the pandemic response. We would urge 

any future Welsh Government to maintain the current third sector infrastructure, and 

look to identify how these structures can be improved and made even more robust.  

Response: Accept  

The Third Sector Scheme sets out how the Welsh Government engages and works 

with the voluntary sector in Wales. The Third Sector Partnership Council (TSPC) is 

the main mechanism for engagement.  

The TSPC established a Covid-19 Recovery Group last year to consider how we can 

build on the voluntary sector response to the crisis and capture some of the new, 

positive ways of working we have seen emerge. It has explored how the voluntary 

sector can contribute to a fair, just and green recovery from the pandemic.  

The group has produced a report presented to the TSPC in March and which will be 

published shortly.  

Throughout the pandemic we have seen the value of our third sector infrastructure 

which has supported and the volunteer response to this crisis. We aim to continue to 

support this infrastructure and to work with Third Sector Support Wales (Wales 

Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) and the nineteen County Voluntary Councils 

(CVCs) across Wales) to ensure its resilience.  

We also aim to ensure that utilising the TSPC as the main point of engagement will 

allow the voice of the voluntary sector in Wales to be hard wired into future policy 

development.  

 

Recommendation 2. The Welsh Government monitors any significant shift in the 

voluntary sector’s presence in Wales to enable a future Welsh Government to 

engage with these charities and encourage them to reinstate a Welsh presence 

when they are in a position to do so.  

Response: Accept  

We are very keen to ensure that there is an open dialogue with the voluntary sector 

in Wales. We are working very closely with our partners and stakeholders including 

TSSW, the TSPC and other funders to make sure Wales has a strong and vibrant 

voluntary sector.  

The Covid-19 pandemic has seen many of these relationships strengthen. We have 

worked closely with other funders in Wales and across the UK, though the Wales 

Funders Forum, to ensure that the variety of funding schemes developed in 

response to the crisis complemented rather than duplicated each other. We have 

also worked to ensure that any gaps in support were addressed as quickly as 

possible.   

Pack Page 27



While we recognise that charities will choose where they are based and how they 

operate, we will continue to work closely with our partners to ensure Wales is a 

welcoming and supportive environment where all third sector organisations can 

thrive.  

 

Recommendation 3. The Welsh Government should work with stakeholders to 

review the role of the voluntary sector in responding to future emergencies. This 

should include:  

 Clearly identifying and recognising the vital role of the voluntary sector in 

responding to emergencies;  

 Sharing of best practice from the response to both the pandemic and the 

flooding in 2020; and  

 Assessing the extent to which the voluntary sector is integrated into formal 

and informal emergency planning structures and how partnerships can be 

strengthened. 

Response: Accept  

The Welsh Government is committed to working with public and voluntary sector 
partners in preparation to respond to future emergencies. 
 
A governance structure comprising a number of multi-agency member groups is 
already established and work together to strengthen preparedness, build collective 
capability and enhance resilience across our communities in Wales. 
 
The First Minister for Wales chairs the Wales Resilience Forum to focus on the 
requirements set out in the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and to support good 
communication and improve emergency planning across agencies and services. 
This Forum is supported through a number of sub-groups, one of which includes the 
Wales Community Resilience Group, which acts as a point of focus and conduit for 
both the voluntary sector, including the Wales Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) 
and responder agencies and to take forward work on community resilience and 
humanitarian assistance. 
 
This group can be used to bring together emergency planning and voluntary sector 
partners to share  insights and learning from their response to Covid-19 and flooding 
events and to consider how best to improve, build and strengthen productive working 
relationships in support of emergency planning structures. 
 

 

Recommendation 4. The Welsh Government should work with the Third Sector 

Partnership Council to ensure the forthcoming digital strategy for Wales fully reflects 

the work of the voluntary sector and the move to digital service delivery.  

Response: Accept  

Pack Page 28



The Welsh Government’s digital ambitions were outlined in a series of blogs based 
on the draft Digital Strategy for Wales, setting out our vision to harness the power of 
digital tools and technologies for the good of citizens in Wales.  
 
During the publication of the blogs, we invited comments about the strategy’s 
missions and priority actions from all interested individuals, organisations and 
businesses. We are holding more detailed conversations with a range of stakeholder 
groups, including the Wales Council for Voluntary Action (WCVA) and voluntary 
sector organisations represented on the Third Sector Partnership Council. The 
Welsh Government will continue this dialogue with the voluntary sector to ensure 
that the Digital Strategy for Wales and the accompanying Delivery Plan reflects its 
role in service delivery.  
 
The Welsh Government recognises that the voluntary sector is vital to the 
sustainability of our digital inclusion support across Wales and volunteer networks 
are already providing a range of support including intergenerational, peer to peer and 
organisation based champions. Our procured programme Digital Communities 
Wales: Digital Confidence, Health and Well-being (DCW) is also reliant on the 
relationships developed at community level to ensure support reaches those in need.   
 
 

Recommendation 5. The Welsh Government should review the effectiveness of 

partnership working across Wales during the pandemic. The review should identify 

good practice that can be replicated across Wales and consider whether there is a 

need to strengthen formal mechanisms to ensure there is meaningful co-production 

and partnership working between statutory bodies, non-statutory bodies, and 

citizens.  

Response: Accept  

The TSPC Covid-19 Recovery group report has identified the importance of strong 

relationships and partnership working during the pandemic and beyond. We will be 

developing internal and external Volunteering Leadership Groups to take forward the 

recommendations of the report in the coming months.    

We will continue to utilise the TSPC as our main engagement mechanism with the 

voluntary sector in Wales. We are also working with a range of stakeholders across 

sectors. These include the WLGA, One Voice Wales, Building Communities Trust, 

funders and many others. 

The Welsh Government has surveyed Local Authorities and CVCs to collect 

information on services provided for non-shielding vulnerable people.  The findings 

are summarised in this report: 

We have also developed the Coronavirus Recovery Grant for Volunteering. This 

grant has supported 27 projects across Wales which aim to develop better strategic 

partnerships between the public and the voluntary sectors. These projects aim to 

build stronger relationships and improve the strategic approach to volunteering in 

Wales.  

Pack Page 29

https://digitalanddata.blog.gov.wales/category/digital-strategy/
https://gov.wales/review-support-non-shielding-vulnerable-people-during-covid-19


 

Recommendation 6. The Welsh Government should work with the voluntary sector 

to identify areas across its work where volunteering can support the post COVID-19 

recovery, public services and well-being. 

Response: Accept  

As stated above we have already started this work in establishing the TSPC Covid-

19 Recovery Group. As part of taking forward the recommendations in this group’s 

report we will establish internal and external Volunteering Leadership Groups.  

We have also developed an action plan for the work of the TSPC’s sub-group on 

Funding and Compliance. The action plan was presented to the TSPC in March and 

will be published shortly.  

 

Recommendation 7. The Welsh Government should develop a programme of 

empowering communities across Wales with the voluntary sector, acting as an 

enabling state for community action. We support the WCVA’s call for this to include a 

Community Wealth Fund and legislation to provide greater ability for communities to 

be involved in local action.  

Response: Accept  

We will continue our work to ensure that Wales has a strong and vibrant voluntary 

sector which supports community action.  

We will also continue our ongoing dialogue with the voluntary sector in Wales to 

establish what action the sector itself believes is necessary to encourage 

communities to become more involved in local action.  

 

Recommendation 8. The Welsh Government should work with stakeholders to 

explore opportunities to enable new community groups formed during the pandemic, 

who wish to continue and have been successfully supporting their local communities, 

to receive the support and advice they need to carry on their work.  

Response: Accept  

We are already working with Third Sector Support Wales (TSSW) and funders 

across Wales to ensure our joint support infrastructure is complementary and is fit for 

purpose to provide support where it is needed. 

TSSW members have been responding to the challenges the pandemic has created. 

TSSW is already providing a variety of support for newly established groups, 

including carrying out DBS checks, supporting groups with training and governance 

issues and of course providing funding to support the groups’ activities.  

Pack Page 30



We will continue to work through the third sector infrastructure to make sure support 

is available to these groups to ensure they can become more resilient and 

sustainable without stifling the creative ways of working they have developed.  

 

Recommendation 9. Building on the Third Sector Resilience Fund, the Welsh 

Government should provide funding to increase the resilience of the sector and its 

ability to play its part in immediate support for communities during the recovery. 

Given the length of the crisis, consideration should be given to extending this beyond 

the current financial year.  

Response: Accept  

The last year has seen the voluntary sector rise to the challenge of supporting our 

most vulnerable people through an unprecedented crisis. I am pleased the Welsh 

Government has been able to provide funding to enable this response. We have 

provided a total of £38.2m for the Covid-19 Third Sector Response Fund in 2020-21.  

One of the funds we have made available through the Response Fund, delivered by 

the WCVA is the Third Sector Resilience Fund. This has allowed organisations to 

survive the crisis and to adapt and improve for the future. We do not yet know what 

challenges recovery will bring and we remain committed to supporting the voluntary 

sector in Wales. We will continue to work with the sector to identify and respond to 

emerging needs as recovery progresses. That said, longer term funding decisions 

remain a matter for the next administration.  

Along with the Third Sector Resilience Fund we have been working with the Charity 

Commission on a project which has the potential to release up to £20 million for the 

benefit of Wales’ communities. The project will revitalise dormant trusts and charities 

in Wales bringing these back into operation, serving their communities of benefit.  

It is also worth mentioning here that we are committed to continued support for the 

third sector infrastructure in Wales. This allows TSSW to in turn provide support for 

the more than 30,000 voluntary sector organisations across Wales, helping them to 

develop resilience and become more sustainable.  

 

Recommendation 10. The Welsh Government should work with the Wales Funders 

Forum to help funders continue to share information and work collaboratively post 

pandemic.  

Response: Accept  

Throughout the pandemic we have been engaged with funders across Wales and 

beyond. We have worked with the members of the Wales Funders Forum including 

the National Lottery, Moondance Foundation, Lloyd’s Foundation, Community 

Foundation Wales and many others to share information and ensure we co-ordinate 

our support. It had been an extremely useful process which has meant we have 

developed funds which complemented rather than duplicated provision. It has also 

ensured that gaps in support are covered quickly.  

Pack Page 31



We are very keen to continue this work in the future and we consider it will be a key 

component of a fair and just recovery from the pandemic.  

 

Recommendation 11. The Welsh Government should, where appropriate, examine 

and investigate allowing unspent funding to be carried forward into the next financial 

year. 

Response:  Accept  

The TSPC Sub-group on Funding and Compliance has already started looking at this 

issue and it forms part of its action plan. The matter is not straight forward and will 

need to be investigated carefully with the involvement of both internal and external 

stakeholders.  

Some of the issues that need to be considered are: 

 The Welsh Government has to operate within the budgeting and financial 

reporting requirements set out by HM Treasury and as voted by the Senedd, 

which includes limitations on annual expenditure and strict limitations on carry 

forward between financial years. 

 The Welsh Government cannot offer flexibility to funded entities outside those 

arrangements. 

 This does not mean the Welsh Government cannot manage funding 

arrangements or contracts over more than one financial year, simply that if 

such arrangements are in place, the annual expenditure must be properly 

brought to account and reported to the Senedd. 

 The Welsh Government is reviewing arrangements for contracts and grants 

with the voluntary sector mindful of the burden the cyclical tendering or 

application process can place on small organisations, any future 

developments in this area will need to meet the requirements of fair and open 

procurement and grant awarding. 

 Where a recipient of funding underspends, that is typically a consequence of 

slippage or delays to delivery of activity. The Welsh Government should not, 

for good financial stewardship, provide funds where activity is not delivered, 

however, that does not mean that programmes and projects cannot be 

managed year to year. Arrangements already exist for the extension to grant 

terms and conditions. 

 Similarly Welsh Government is able to make advance payments in certain 

circumstances to voluntary organisations where cash-flow challenges exist, 

and has made good use of this capability in supporting the recent Covid-19 

response. 

 

Recommendation 12. The Welsh Government should take into account the 

particular challenges faced by Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic voluntary sector 

organisations, when considering funding for the third sector. This should include 

considering any additional barriers Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups may face 

Pack Page 32



in accessing funding administered by the Welsh Government and work to minimise 

these barriers.  

Response: Accept  

We are committed to continuing to work with our third sector infrastructure to look at 

what can be done to identify and to tackle the additional barriers faced by some parts 

of the sector specifically those from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups.  

The current consultation on the Welsh Government Equality and Inclusion Fund and 

the forthcoming consultation on the Race Equality Action Plan will inform future 

action. 

 

Recommendation 13. The Welsh Government should consider and reflect on the 

findings from Community Foundation Wales Loud and Clear report and encourage 

funders to support core costs so organisations have the freedom to adapt in ever 

changing situations to sustain and develop key service or programme outcomes.  

Response:  Accept   

As we have already said we are continuing to build on the relationships we have 

developed with the Wales Funders Forum members and other funders. Part of this 

will enable us to work collaboratively to support the funding needs of the voluntary 

sector in Wales.  

The work of the TSPC Sub-group on Funding and Compliance will also influence our 

continuing work in this area.  

However, we must also consider that funding is only part of the picture in developing 

a vibrant and resilient voluntary sector in Wales. Voluntary sector organisations also 

need the right skills. We believe that our third sector infrastructure will be vital in 

helping organisations to develop these skills, to improve governance and improve 

the future resilience and sustainability of the sector.   

 

Recommendation 14. The Welsh Government should make representations to the 

UK Government regarding the impact of current international obligations in relation to 

State Aid rules on support to the charity retail sector.  

Response: Accept  

Throughout negotiations on the terms of the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation 

agreement the Welsh Government proactively engaged with the UK Government on 

the development of the UK subsidy regime to ensure that it is fit for the whole of the 

UK and did not just reflect the political priorities of the UK Government. Due to 

agreement on the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation only being reached a week before 

the end of the Transition period, a baseline UK subsidy regime consisting of the UK's 

international subsidy commitments has come into effect. In the lead up to the UK 

Government opening a public consultation process on the design of a new domestic 

Pack Page 33



subsidy on 3 February 2021 Welsh Government officials have worked to ensure the 

interests of Wales and Welsh businesses are recognised, and will continue to do so 

as development progresses. It is vitally important that the future UK subsidy regime 

reflects the needs of all four nations of the UK. 

 

Recommendation 15. The Welsh Government should carry out further research to 

assess the social value of its investment in the voluntary sector.  

Response: Accept  

We are aware that there is some good practice already developed in this area, 

especially in North Wales and through the development of the Welsh Themes 

Outputs and Measures. We will ensure that the third sector infrastructure captures 

this good practice and considers using the Third Sector Change Fund to disseminate 

it across Wales.  

We will also consider what else can be done to assess social value of Welsh 

Government investment.  

 

Recommendation 16. The Welsh Government should work with the voluntary sector 

to identify areas across its work where the sector can support the recovery, public 

services, building sustainable community resilience and well-being.  

Response: Accept  

The TSPC Covid-19 Recovery Group has already started work on this area. As we 

have stated the Group’s report will be published shortly and internal and external 

Volunteering Leadership Groups will be established to take forward the 

recommendations from this report.  

 

Recommendation 17. The Welsh Government should invest in voluntary sector 

programmes which support the recovery, in a similar manner to the Voluntary 

Services Recovery Fund. Given the length of the crisis, consideration should be 

given to extending this beyond the current financial year.  

Response:  Accept in Principle  

As we said in our Response to Recommendation 9 we have provided a total of 

£38.2m for the Covid-19 Third Sector Response Fund in 2020-21. The Voluntary 

Services Recovery Fund, again delivered by WCVA is part of this Response Fund.  

We do not yet know what challenges recovery will bring and we remain committed to 

supporting the voluntary sector in Wales. We will continue to work with the sector to 

identify and respond to emerging needs as recovery progresses. That said, longer 

term funding decisions remain a matter for the next administration.  

Pack Page 34



We are committed to continued support for the third sector infrastructure in Wales 

and have secured an increase in core funding for TSSW in 2021-22. 

 

Recommendation 18. In future recovery work, the Welsh Government should 

ensure that all parts of the public sector engage with the voluntary sector in policy-

making and service delivery. This should also lead to greater partnership working 

beyond the recovery and include the voices of the voluntary sector as well as the 

people with whom they work.  

Response: Accept   

As stated we are committed to continuing to work with the voluntary sector across 

Wales. We will do this primarily through the TSPC and our work with the third sector 

infrastructure organisations. We are also working with a range of other partners 

including Building Communities Trust, Wales Co-operative Centre, Community 

Foundation Wales and many others.  We recognise that the voice of the voluntary 

sector needs to be hard wired into future policy decisions.  

Part of the work of the TSPC Recovery Group has been to consider the benefits of 

the new ways of working which have emerged from the crisis. We have seen 

relationships between the voluntary and the public sectors develop in new ways 

throughout the last year and we are keen to ensure these positive shifts are retained.  

We established the Coronavirus Recovery Grant for Volunteering with the aim of 

aiding the development of relationships between the public and voluntary sectors.  

The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and its five ways of working provide a 

framework for the development of better working relationships.   

However, while we can continue to work on developing these relationships this is a 

long term aim which will need to be supported and continued by the next 

administration.  

 

Recommendation 19. The Welsh Government should report publicly on the 

effectiveness of the Connected Communities strategy in tackling loneliness and 

isolation within 12 months.  

Response: Accept    

When Connected Communities was published in February 2020, the Welsh 

Government committed to publishing a report every two years outlining progress 

against delivering the commitments within the strategy and sharing further actions 

and any changes to our approach.  

The first progress report will be published by March 2022. 

 

Pack Page 35



Recommendation 20. The Welsh Government explores further how new 

technology, including the app that Hafod is developing, can be used to help address 

loneliness and isolation. As part of this, the Welsh Government should take account 

of issues around the digital divide and ensure that solutions take account of these 

issues around digital access. 

Response: Accept 

In December 2020, the Welsh Government approved funding of £30,000 towards 

phase 1 of a pilot smart speaker based solution for tackling loneliness and social 

isolation. ‘Home Care’ is being piloted by a consortium including Hafod, Accenture, 

Amazon and Swansea University’s Centre for Innovative Ageing. 

Issues around the digital divide, and ensuring solutions take account of these issues, 
are being considered by the Welsh Government’s loneliness and social isolation 
advisory group. The group, which consists of key stakeholders from the statutory and 
third sectors and grass-roots organisations, was established to help us better 
understand the impact of the pandemic on loneliness and isolation. Digital exclusion 
and ensuring information is accessible to all are two of the key areas raised by group 
members.   
 
Digital inclusion is a key social justice and equalities issue. The Welsh Government’s 
Digital Strategy for Wales sets out our ambitions across six missions, digital 
services, digital skills, digital inclusion, digital connectivity, digital economy and data 
and collaboration. Digital inclusion is at the heart of all we deliver, embedded across 
policy, programme and service development. 
 
Digital inclusion is about ensuring people have the confidence to use the internet and 
digital technology in ways that will enhance their lives, helping them to overcome 
other disadvantages they might face. The pandemic has highlighted the challenges 
in addressing digital exclusion, connectivity, and access and we know that devices 
and infrastructure alone are not the solution.   
 
Developing the digital skills of communities can lead to greater economic 
opportunities, a more equal society and improved social cohesion. We want to make 
clear our commitment to support everyone to gain the motivation, confidence and 
skills in order to make informed decisions and to choose how they participate in, and 
make the most of, our increasingly digital world.  
 
A key element of the Digital Strategy for Wales is the role of the Centre for Digital 
Public Services. The Centre, established in June 2020, is responsible for sharing 
best practice and improving the coordination of services that reach across Local 
Government, the Welsh Government, Health and Social Care, business and the 
Third Sector in Wales.   In September, the Centre shared the first draft of the Digital 
Service Standards for Wales. A common digital service standard across all public 
service organisations in Wales will support and embed user centered service design 
and deliver better services and outcomes for all users. The Standards reinforce that 
service design must be fully inclusive, with alternative ways to access available and 
developed to be just as good as those offered online. 
 

Pack Page 36

http://digitalpublicservices.gov.wales/toolbox/digital-service-standards/
http://digitalpublicservices.gov.wales/toolbox/digital-service-standards/


 

Jane Hutt MS 

Deputy Minister and Chief Whip 

Pack Page 37



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 38

Agenda Item 4 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 57

Agenda Item 5By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Paper(s) to note
	2.1 Letter from the Llywydd to all Senedd Committee Chairs in relation to the Welsh Elections (Coronavirus) Bill 2021 – impact on Senedd Committees
	2.2 Letter from the Minister for Housing and Local Government in relation to the inquiry into fire safety in high rise blocks in Wales (Welsh Government white paper - Safer Buildings in Wales: A Consultation)
	2.3 Response from the Welsh Government to the Committee's report on the impact of COVID-19 on the voluntary sector
	4 Consideration of the Committee's draft legacy report
	5 Consideration of the Committee's consultation response to the Welsh Government white paper - Safer Buildings in Wales: A Consultation



